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LOS ANGELES COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
DISTRICT Contracts Office 

770 Wilshire Boulevard, 6th Floor 
Los Angeles, California 90017 

RFP Number: 18-07: DEVELOP A STRATEGIC ENROLLMENT MARKETING PLAN FOR ENROLLMENT 
GROWTH AND FISCAL STABILITY AT LOS ANGELES CITY COLLEGE 
Addendum Number: 1 
Date: July 9, 2018 

 
NOTICE TO PROPOSERS: THIS ADDENDUM SHALL BECOME PART OF THE RFP, AND PROPOSERS SHALL 
ACKNOWLEDGE, IN WRITING, RECEIPT AND INCORPORATION OF ALL ADDENDA AND CLARIFICATIONS 
IN THEIR RESPONSE. FAILURE OF THE BIDDER TO RECEIVE ADDENDA SHALL NOT RELIEVE THE 
BIDDER FROM ANY OBLIGATION UNDER ITS BID AS SUBMITTED. THE BIDDER SHALL IDENTIFY AND 
LIST IN ITS BID ALL ADDENDA RECEIVED AND INCLUDED IN ITS BID; FAILURE TO DO SO MAY BE 
ASSERTED BY THE DISTRICT AS A BASIS FOR DETERMINING THE BID NON-RESPONSIVE. 

CLARIFICATION(S) REQUESTED BY POTENTIAL PROPOSERS: 
 
 

NUMBER QUESTION EDUCATIONAL SERVICES CENTER 
RESPONSE 

 
1. 

Are non-US based companies allowed to submit their 
proposal? 

Section IV RFP Schedule and Conditions, 
Section H, page 18, Authorization To Do 
Business which states, in part: “All 
Proposers must be authorized to do 
business in California. If a Proposer is a 
sole proprietorship or partnership, the 
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  Proposer should furnish with its proposal a 

copy of a current business license issued in 
California. If the Proposer is a corporation, 
it must be approved by the California 
Secretary of State to do business in 
California as shown by it having an 
“ACTIVE” status listed on the California 
Secretary of State website as of the date of 
evaluation of the proposal. The Proposer 
should provide the corporate number issued 
by the Secretary of State with its proposal.” 

2. Can out of state agencies submit an RFP response 
and 

Yes. Section IV RFP Schedule and 
Conditions, Section H, page 18, 
Authorization To Do Business which states, 
in part: “All Proposers must be authorized 
to do business in California. If a Proposer is 
a sole proprietorship or partnership, the 
Proposer should furnish with its proposal a 
copy of a current business license issued in 
California. If the Proposer is a corporation, 
it must be approved by the California 
Secretary of State to do business in 
California as shown by it having an 
“ACTIVE” status listed on the California 
Secretary of State website as of the date of 
evaluation of the proposal. The Proposer 
should provide the corporate number issued 
by the Secretary of State with its proposal.” 
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3. If so, will there be any incremental consideration for 

a California agency or penalty for a non-California 
agency? 

No. 

4. Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside 
USA? (like, from India or Canada) 

The awarded proposer will be required to 
participate in in-person meetings at least 
once a month. 

5. Would the regular meetings with the district team 
need to be in person, or regular scheduled phone 
calls would be acceptable? 

The awarded proposer will be required to 
participate in in-person meetings at least 
once a month. 

6. Is it possible to email proposals into the LACCD? Please refer to Section IV RFP Schedule and 
Proposal Submission, page 11, which 
states, in part: 

 
1. Proposals may be mailed or delivered. 
2. Proposals shall be submitted in a sealed 

package. 
3. Proposer shall submit 1(one) original 

and ten (10) copies with one (1) 
USB drive containing an electronic 
version of the proposal in editable 
Microsoft Word format 

4. Proposals must be signed. 
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7. The RFP says the cover page should have “RFP No. 

18-: Information Technology Organization, Staff and 
Process Evaluation,” is this correct? 

A cover page shall be included with the 
Proposer’s name, the title, “RFP No. 18-07: 
Develop A Strategic Enrollment Marketing 
Plan For Enrollment Growth And Fiscal 
Stability At Los Angeles City College,” and 
submission due date and time. 

8. The RFP does not specify seeing examples of the 
agency’s creative campaign work— should that be 
part of the proposal? 

This is not required. The college will be 
providing to the proposer the creative 
portion of the advertising. 

9. Is there a not-to-exceed budget total? This question is not relevant to being able 
to provide the best services and most 
advantageous value to the District. 

10. What was the budget for current campaign initiative? This question is not relevant to being able 
to provide the best services and most 
advantageous value to the District. 

11. What was your external communication budget 
for your last fiscal year? 

This question is not relevant to being able to 
provide the best services and most 
advantageous value to the District. 

12. What is the current communication annual budget LA 
City College? Do you have budget guideline for 
overall spending? 

This question is not relevant to being able 
to provide the best services and most 
advantageous value to the District. 

13. Has a budget been allocated for this project? If so, 
can you share what that budget is to assist us in 
designing the most appropriate project plan? 

This question is not relevant to being able 
to provide the best services and most 
advantageous value to the District. 
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14. What is the current marketing spend for LACC? This question is not relevant to being able 

to provide the best services and most 
advantageous value to the District. 

15. What is the identified budget and/or rough budget 
expectations? 

This question is not relevant to being able 
to provide the best services and most 
advantageous value to the District. 

16. Just to clarify- you are not looking for an executed 
plan but a cost for each packet to develop the 
research, plan and execution? 

Please propose your optimal solution 
and recommendation(s) including your 
plan and the execution of that plan. 

17. Are we expected to present a media budget as that 
would typically happen after the research and KPIs 
are developed? 

You are expected to present a media 
budget. 

18. Is it standard practice for the District to be letting 
the contract rather than the individual 
college? (Our experience has been direct with 
colleges, unless the effort is a 
consortium of schools.) 

This question is not relevant to being able 
to provide the best services and most 
advantageous value to the District. 

19. What is your current CMS? People Soft is our student information 
system. 

20. What are the specific programs you are looking to 
promote? 

We want to promote all of our programs. 
Refer to: www.lacitycollege.edu 

21. Are there landing pages currently for all of these 
programs? 

Yes. 

http://www.lacitycollege.edu/
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22. As part of this RFP, are you looking for Google 

Analytics dashboards as part of the reporting? 
We are looking for the best analytics in the 
industry. 

23. Would you like to include web personalization in this 
strategy? 

Please propose your optimal strategy 
and recommendations. 

24. What size is your current inquiry pool? 22,713 - submitted applications for LACC for 
2017 –18) – Source: PeopleSoft 

25. What is your applicant pool list size? From 22,713 attempted a class during 
2017–18: 

 
12,432 (at LACCD); 

 
11,781 (at LACC) 

 
– Source: PeopleSoft 

26. Please let me know what the current year to year 
retention rate is. 

76% of incoming cohort 
(State scorecard data, Percentage of 
degree, certificate and/or transfer- 
seeking students starting first time in 
2011-12 tracked for six years through 
2016-17 who enrolled in the first three 
consecutive terms.) 

27. Has any market or audience research previously been 
done? Can the findings be shared with the proposers? 

We have no audience/market 
research information. 

28. Has a brand and campaign strategy previously been 
established? Can that be shared with the proposers? 

We have done a local college branding 
campaign. We started the summer with a 
new campaign. Samples of the current 
campaign are on the pages that follow. 
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29. Could we see the current campaign? Was this done 
internally or with an external agency? Is there 
specific feedback or new direction per this current 
campaign? 

Yes. The college Foundation enlisted the 
services of an outside agency. This is the 
creative design that will be used for this 
upcoming campaign. 
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30. In the RFP, Project 1 states a comprehensive 

advertising campaign. Does this RFP include the 
creative work, (design and development) needed to 
create the campaign, separate from the strategy 
campaign? 

We have the creative work, design and 
development that we are providing 
separately. 

31. Is your intention that the ad campaign (Project 1) 
would be completed after the strategic media plan 
(Project 2)? 

The ad campaign will be established and 
the media campaign needed will parallel 
and follow. 

32. Will this campaign be in English only? Or should 
proposer plan for additional languages? If so, what 
languages? 

Proposer should plan for additional 
languages, such as Spanish, Korean, 
Armenian. 

 
33. 

 
What is the process for engaging with the selected 
individuals associated with the Enrollment 
management Committee? 

 
 
Who will be our point person? 

The college has a monthly enrollment 
management committee meeting.  

 

This question is not relevant to being able 
to provide the best services and most 
advantageous value to the District. 

34. How large is the internal team that will be assigned 
and dedicated to this project? What are the key 
roles? Do you / where do you anticipate overlap or 
shared workload? 

The internal team will be about 6 people; 
their roles are advisory, approval and 
creative. 

35. What is the process for approvals? How much time 
and rounds should we anticipate for client approvals? 

The process for approvals is submission to 
the management team. You can expect a 
response within 48 business hours. 
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36. Is the district looking to the agency as a soup-to-nuts 

partner or will the university team be handling 
certain responsibilities in conjunction with the 
agency? e.g. is there an internal design team? 

There is an internal creative program. 
We are seeking a soup-to-nuts 
partner, a partner who can work with 
us from inception to completion. 

37. Will the agency be delivering assets to the district for 
trafficking? Or will the agency be responsible for 
trafficking assets to the print & digital vendors, media 
channels, mailing services? 

The agency will be responsible for 
trafficking assets to vendor(s). 

38. How does the district feel about its current design 
identity? Will the new campaign be a direct 
extension of the existing design toolkit? Or are you 
looking to create new design assets and / or do 
more with what you have? 

We are currently displaying outdoor 
advertising to brand the college and we 
are looking to do more with what we 
have. 

39. How does the district feel about its current logo, 
colors and typography? 

This question is not relevant to being able 
to provide the best services and most 
advantageous value to the District. 

40. Do you have a database list of area high-school 
counselors that could be targeted with appropriate 
key message points? 

Yes. 

41. Does a college marketing plan exist, and if so, can 
we obtain a copy? 

The college does not have a comprehensive 
marketing plan. 
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42. Is there a communications firm currently contracted 

by the district and/or the college? If so, what is the 
company name, and contract date term? 

This question is not relevant to being able 
to provide the best services and most 
advantageous value to the District. 

43. How should the agency's proposal budget for 
"production" items like video and / or photography 
shoots? Will these items be scoped later? Or is the 
expectation that these numbers should be included in 
our proposal? 

We have the creative, including 
photoshoots and video. If more is needed, 
our “creative” will do it. 

44. Does the College have an incumbent or preferred 
vendor - or short list of vendors - in mind for this 
project? 

No. 

45. Are there existing communication assets, i.e. creative 
brief, tagline, print ads, videos, etc. and if so, are 
they available for review? 

We have the creative, including photoshoots 
and video. If more is needed, our “creative” 
will do it. 

46. For potential print advertisements, are the 
specs for design only with proposer delivering 
final files to the university? Will the district 
manage printing and installation? 
Or, will proposer be responsible for oversight of the 
printing? And oversight of the installation? 

The college will be responsible for oversight 
of printing; the successful proposer will be 
responsible for oversight of installation. 
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47. Is proof of insurance necessary at the time the 

proposal is submitted? 
Proposals that wish to be deemed 
responsive and subject to further review 
and scoring, shall in accordance with Article 
IV, Page 14, Section 4., “Mandatory 
Documents Proposer Must Submit 
Within the Sealed Response,” shall furnish 
certificates of insurance showing the types 
and amounts of insurance. 

48. Will proposers be given a proof of submission when 
the proposal is received by mail at the university? 

Proposers may request by email, 
(mcfarld@email.laccd.edu) confirmation 
receipt of mailed proposals to the District. 

49. When is the earliest date the work on the project 
may commence? 

September 2018. 

50. What are the major transfer schools for LACC? CSU, UC, USC, a few Ivy Leagues; mostly 
CSULA, CSULB, CSUN, UCLA, UC Irvine, UC 
Berkeley, UCSD, UC Davis. 

51. Have any LACC Grads gotten into private schools like 
Stanford, Claremont, USC, etc.? 

Yes, and all of the above. 

52. What does it mean when the RFP states "LACC has 
the creative concept" on page 31 

We have the “creative” in place. 

53. Are the packets on pages 31-33 for Project one or 
two? 

Project 1 
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54. Must the ad campaign be launched, up and running 

by September 15, 2018 and data packets be 
completed too by that date? 

No. We need advertising out for 
Winter/Spring 2019 by early 
November. 

55. Within the Evaluation Criteria, on page 26, you ask 
for a demonstration on how a “POI” is established 
and measured. Do you mean an ROI? Please clarify 
the terminology “POI”. 

Page 26 should read “ROI” – Return on 
Investment 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14’ x 48’ Billboard 

ADVERTISING SAMPLES 
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Bus Tails 


